Unity Tutorial for Creating Nina Hewitt's Alpine VR Tour Prepared by: Emily Ballon, Alpine VR Tour Project Assistant, Mar 2020, Hewitt Biogeography Teaching and Research Lab [http://blogs.ubc.ca/alpineplants/]



Table of Contents:

Contents:	Page
Setting up Unity	3
Creating a Project	4
Setting up your scene	5
Useful information to know before adding content	9
Creating spheres	12
Creating sprites	16
Creating forward and back buttons in the spheres	17
Creating pop-up information blurbs	18
Creating multiple choice pop ups	20
Creating hyperlinks	21
Adding videos	22
Building (exporting) the project	23
Uploading	25
Helpful resources	26

Setting up Unity

1. Download Unity Personal from the Unity website: https://store.unity.com/download-nuo. Agree to the terms and download.



2. Open up Unity Hub. Create an account using the person icon in the top right corner. Sign in to the account on Unity Hub.

	unity		100 2.3.2		\$	Θ
•	Projects	Projects		ADD	NEW	•
۲	Learn	Project Name	Unity Version	Target Platform	Last Modified \land	Q
÷.	Community	Second Try				
≡	Installs	/Users/Emily_Ballon/Desktop/Unity/Secon Unity Version: 2019.2.9f1	2019.2.9f1 👻	Current platform	a few seconds ago	:

3. Click the tool button next to the person icon in the top right to open preferences. Go to license management, and press "activate new license". *You need to have created an account and be signed in.

• •	•	Unity Hub 2.3.2		
÷	- Preferences			¢ 0
۵	General	License	ACTIVATE NEW LICENSE	MANUAL ACTIVATION
	License Management	Personal		
14	Advanced	Unity Personal is a great place for beginners and hobbyis engine features, continuous updates, beta releases, and a Activation: 2019/09/29 Last Update: 2020/03/07	ts to get started. It includes a all publishing platforms.	ccess to all core game
		Buy Professional Edition — Help — FAQ	RETURN LIGENSE	CHECK FOR UPDATES
4	You need to be logged i	n to manage your license.		

4. Using the back button, go back to the Unity Hub project area, and click on installs in the left menu. Click add in the top right and install the most recent version of unity. Add whatever modules are wanted, but none are needed. Can be added later. Now unity is installed on your computer

e ● ● €junity		Unity	Hub 2.3.2		٩	0
Projects	Installs			LOCATE	ADD	
 Learn Community 	\triangleleft	:				
≡ Installs	2019.2.9f1					
	5					

Creating a project

1. Navigate to the projects tab in the left menu and click new. Select 3D, name your project, and assign the location to the folder you want to store your entire project in on your computer. Click create.



2. Now create a scene to work in. Once your Unity project is open, in the top bar click File > New Scene



3. In the Project tab of the Unity interface (located at the bottom left), select the assets folder. In the assets folder, right click and select Create > Folder. Create 5 folders. Name them Materials, Scenes, Scripts, Textures, and Videos. Place the scene created previously into the Scenes folder (just by drag and drop). *You can create as many folders as you need, it's just a nice way to organize all of the parts of your project. Those 5 are the least amount I used for this project.

	Try 2	2 - Second Try - WebGL - Unity	2019.2.	9f1 Personal (Personal) <metal></metal>		
🖑 🕁 🖾 😥 💥 ! 🕫 Pivot	© Global	► II	M		Collab •	Accour
	ame 🌐 Asset Store			Folder	-=	0 Insp
Create * OrAll Shaded Wireframe	- 2D 💡 🕪 🛫 - 9		-		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
▶ Tripod				C# Script Shader		
▶ 36 ▶ 37	To look arou	nd the scene, click an	d drag	Testing		
▶ 38 ▶ 42	🚬 🕨 -> Go	o forward in the tour		Playables		
▶ 43	📰 🛛 📢 -> Ge	backward in the tour	10	Assembly Definition Assembly Definition Reference	< Perzen	-
▶ 45 ▶ 47	🦲 🧻 -> Ad	ccess information		TextMeshPro	4	
▶ 0 49 ▶ 0 51	A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL	ccess multiple choice c	Desti	Scene Prefab Variant		
	Contraction of the local data and the local data an	ccess an external con : ead more on an extern	athual	Audio Mixer	1 × ×	
	Please take has been a	Ose the banel Create Reveal in Finder Open	ZZ •	Material Lens Flare Render Texture Lightmap Parameters Custom Render Texture		
	total of 4 ir next one. If have read 1	Delete Rename Copy Path	∵жс	Sprite Atlas Sprites		
	Websites w	Open Scene Additive		Animator Controller	and the second	
Project Console Create *	tab or dow	Import New Asset Import Package Export Package	•	Animation Animator Override Controller Avatar Mask	à -=) 4 € ★ Ø9	
All Materials All Models All Prefabs		Find References In Scene Select Dependencies		Timeline Signal		
All Pretados Mater Scenes	Scripts Sprites Textu	Refresh Reimport	₩R	Physic Material Physics Material 2D		
		Reimport All		GUI Skin		
		Extract From Prefab		Custom Font		
		Run API Updater		Legacy 🕨		
		Update UIElements Schen	na	UIElements Editor Window Brush		-
	1	Open C# Project		Terrain Layer		

Setting up your scene

1. First, make sure that you are always working in your scene. This is where everything is saved. You can tell if you are in the scene if it is listed under the hierarchy, in the top left area. Mine is called "Try 2"

🖑 🕂 S	X 🗉 🛞	24
'⊞ Hierarchy	<u> </u>	=
Create * Q*All)
🔻 🌍 Try 2	*=	=
► 🕜 Tripod		
► 河 36		
▶ 🕥 37		
▶ 🜍 38		
► 🖓 42		
▶ 河 43		
► 🖓 45		
▶ 🕡 47		
▶ 🕡 49		
▶ 🕜 51		

- 2. In the hierarchy, delete the Directional Light by right clicking and selecting delete
- Click on Main Camera in the hierarchy, and set the Position to 0,0,0 in the inspector on the right side of the screen. In the inspector under Clipping Planes, set Near to 0.01, and Far to 6.

Inspector	a -
Main Came	era 🗌 Static 🔻
Tag MainCamera	a + Layer Default +
▼↓ Transform	 []
Position X 0	Y 0 Z 0
Rotation X 0	Y 0 Z 0
Scale X 1	Y 1 Z 1
🔻 💼 🗹 Camera	🗐 🕂 🌣
Clear Flags	Skybox ‡
Background	/
Culling Mask	Everything ‡
Projection	Perspective \$
FOV Axis	Vertical \$
Field of View	77.3196
Physical Camera	
Focal Length	15
Sensor Type	Custom \$
Sensor Size	
X 36	Y 24
Lens Shift	
X 0	Y 0
Gate Fit	Horizontal ‡
Clipping Planes	Near 0.01
copping names	Far 6
Viewport Rect	
X 0	Y 0
W 1	H 1
Depth	-1
Rendering Path	Use Graphics Settings 🕴
Target Texture	None (Render Text 💿
Occlusion Culling	
HDR	Use Graphics Settings 🕴
MSAA	Use Graphics Settings 🕴
Allow Dynamic Reso	

4. In the inspector for Main Camera, scroll down to the bottom and click add component. Type "Physics Raycaster" in the text box, and click on it to add it to the camera. Do the same for "Standalone Input Module". When adding the Standalone Input Module, an EventSystem will be added automatically to the main camera.



5. In the Hierarchy, right click and select Create Empty. This will create a GameObject. Rename the GameObject as Tripod by clicking twice on the name. In the inspector, set the position to 0,0,0, and the scale to 0.0001, 0.0001, 0.0001. Then in the hierarchy, drag and drop the Main Camera onto the tripod.

'⊞ Hierarchy	y 🔒 +≡
Create *	
🔻 🍕 Try	2 ,
▼ 🖓 T	ripod
	Main Camera
► 🖓 3	18
▶ ○ 3	
► 🖓 3 ► 🖓 4	
▶ 0 4	
▶ () 4	
► () 4	
► () 5.	1
	Сору
	Paste
	Rename
	Duplicate
	Delete
	Select Children
	Select Prefab Root
	Create Empty
	3D Object 🕨
	2D Object
Project	Effects

- 6. Download the attached scripts from <u>http://blogs.ubc.ca/alpineplants/vrtour-turoial/</u> labeled SphereChange.cs, CameraMovement.cs, and BCParks.cs. Place them into the Scripts folder in Assets.
- 7. Click on the Main Camera in the hierarchy, and add the "CameraMovement" script through the Add Component button at the bottom of the inspector. Set the Rotate Speed under Camera Movement (Script) as desired, for how quickly you want the screen to move. 100-200 is generally good, with increasing values being faster.

Inspector	â •	=			
Main Camera	Static	•			
Tag MainCamera	Layer Default	•			
▼ 🙏 Transform	i 🔝	\$,			
Position X 0	Y 0 Z 0				
Rotation X 0	Y 0 Z 0				
Scale X 1	Y 1 Z 1				
🕨 🚭 🗹 Camera	🗐 🕂	\$,			
🙆 🗹 Audio Listener	- E 🔟	\$,			
🔻 📾 🗹 Camera Mover	nene (Seript) and the	\$,			
Script	CameraMovement	0			
Rotate Speed	200				
🔻 🤄 🗹 Physics Raycas	ster (Script) 🔯 🗐	\$,			
Script	PhysicsRaycaster	0			
Event Mask	Everything	ŧ			
Max Ray Intersections	0				
🔻 🛒 🗹 Event System ((Script)	¢,			
Script	EventSystem	0			
First Selected	None (Game Object)	0			
Send Navigation Event	t .				
Drag Threshold	10				
▼ 上 🗹 Standalone Inp	ut Module (5 🔲 🗔	ø.			
Script	La StandaloneInputMo	0			
Horizontal Axis	Horizontal	٦			
Vertical Axis	Vertical	1			
Submit Button	Submit				
Cancel Button	Cancel				
Input Actions Per Seco 10					
Repeat Delay	0.5				
Force Module Active					
Add Co	omponent				

8. In the Tripod's inspector, add the "SphereChanger" script with the Add Component button

	_		_		_	_	_	_
 Inspecto 	r						1	=
	ripo Intag		÷	Layer De	fau) Sta It	tic	•
🔻 🙏 🛛 Tra	nsf	orm					킕	\$
Position	Х	0	Y	0	Z	0		
Rotation	Х	0	Y	0	Z	0		
Scale	Х	0.0001	Y	0.0001	Z	0.0	000	1
Script	ere	Changer		ript) phereCh	ang) ger	큐	₽ , ⊙
		Add Cor	npo	onent	_			

Useful information to know before adding content

1. To test the project, click the play button at the top of Unity. To make the screen larger, click the Maximize on Play in Game view (the screen will be larger next time you play the project, use the same button to minimize the screen). To exit Game view, hit the play button again. This view enables you to see what a finished project will look like.



- 2. Game view is an easy way to manipulate the location of everything within your project and I recommend using it to place things in their correct location, however any changes made in game view will not be saved so be sure to record any adjustments made externally. This also means that you can test things and it will not affect the project at all.
- 3. Moving around in game view is controlled the same way as in the actual product, with mouse clicks and drags.
- 4. In edit mode, the buttons in the top left of Unity are helpful for adjusting the scale, position, and rotation of objects, as well as the view of your project. Play around with them until they make sense. Location and sizes of objects can also be manipulated in the Inspector of each object. The easiest way to move around your project is to select the hand button. To move around, click and drag the mouse. Zoom in and out using 2 fingers on the trackpad, rotate the view by holding option and dragging the mouse.



5. The order that objects are seen in the project is the order they appear in the hierarchy. If two objects have the same spatial position, objects at the top of the hierarchy will occur behind those that come lower in the hierarchy. This can be easily manipulated by dragging and dropping objects above or below others in the hierarchy. In the image below, 49 will appear behind 51, if they are at the same position.

'≔ Hierarchy	∂ •≡
Create * Q*All	
🔻 🌍 Try 2*	*≡
Tripod	
V 🖓 36	
Canvas	
▶ 🜍 37	
▶ 🜍 38	
▶ 河 42	
▶ 河 43	
▶ 河 45	
▶ 河 47	
▶ 🜍 49	
▶ 🕥 51	

- 6. Make sure to name all objects added to the hierarchy with individual and identifiable names. There will be many different objects by the end and it is good to have things organized.
- 7. To increase quality of sprites, go to the Inspector of the sprites, increase the compression to High Quality and click apply.

animals Impor	t Settings 🛛 🗐 井 🌣
Texture Type	Sprite (2D and UI) +
Texture Shape	2D ‡
Sprite Mode	Single +
Pixels Per Unit	250
Mesh Type	Tight \$
Extrude Edges	
Pivot	Center +
Generate Physics :	
	Sprite Editor
▶ Advanced	
Wrap Mode	Clamp +
Filter Mode	(Bilinear \$
Aniso Level	·O
Default	1 B
Max Size	2048 \$
Resize Algorithm	Mitchell \$
Format	Automatic +
Compression	High Quality \$
Use Crunch Compres	ss
	_
	Revert Apply

8. To increase the quality of the tour, go to Edit > Project Settings. Click the Quality tab on the left. Click the down arrows next to default (there will be as many columns as platforms you have set up, this will make sense later) and change the quality to Ultra. Set Texture Quality to Full Res, Anti Aliasing to 8x Multi Sampling, and Shadow Resolution to Very High Resolution.

File	Edit Assets GameObje	ct	Con
Sþ	Undo Selection Change Redo	# 2 순 % 2	_
All	Select All Deselect All Select Children Select Prefab Root	第/ ①[①(① () 第 第	D 2 C R
Canvas 43 > 4 43 > 4 growir 43MC	Cut Copy Paste	第2 第0 第1	C V
first na	Duplicate Delete	жı ж	_
 43MC; qtex qtex nor east 	Frame Selected Lock View to Selected Find	 合 第	
 sou wes wro righ 		米 米 ① 米 ブ	P
clos stress first na i	Sign in Sign out		
,	Selection Project Settings)	
	rigour octungs		

Levels	± 🗉
Very Low	V V 🗇
Low	V V 🖻
Medium	v v 🖻
High	V V 📅
Very High	V V 📅
Ultra	🗹 🗹 💼
Default	* *

Levels	+ 5
Very Low	V V 🗇
Low	
Medium	Very Low
High	Low Medium
Very High	High
Ultra	Very High
Default	√ Ultra

Quality		🗐 🕸
Name	Ultra	
Rendering		
Pixel Light Count	4	
Texture Quality	Full Res	\$
Anisotropic Textures	Forced On	\$
Anti Aliasing	8x Multi Sampling	+
Soft Particles	\checkmark	
	Soft Particles require using Deferred Lighting or making camera depth texture.	a render the
Realtime Reflection Probes	\checkmark	
Billboards Face Camera Position	\checkmark	
Resolution Scaling Fixed DPI Factor	1	
Texture Streaming		
Shadows		
Shadowmask Mode	Distance Shadowmask	\$
Shadows	Hard and Soft Shadows	\$
Shadow Resolution	Very High Resolution	\$
Shadow Projection	Stable Fit	+
Shadow Distance	150	
Shadow Near Plane Offset	3	
Shadow Cascades	Four Cascades	\$

9. Another way to increase the quality of the tour is by going to Window > Rendering > Light Settings. Go to the Quality tab on the left and scale the Intensity Multiplier down to about 0.25.

Window Help		표 Lighting ·=
Minimize Zoom	₩M Unity 2019.2.9f1 Person	
Bring All to Front		V Environment Skybox Material None (Material) © Sun Source None (Light) ©
		Environment Lighting
Asset Store Package Manager	¥9	Source Skybox : Ambient Color
Asset Management	+ 3	Ambient Mode Realtime : Environment Reflections
TextMeshPro		Source Skybox + Resolution 128 +
General	fructions was secure the strong elicited as an	Compression Auto +
Rendering Animation	Lighting SettingsLight Explorer	Intensity Multiplier 0.255 Bounces 0 1
	Minimize Zoom Bring All to Front Layouts Asset Store Package Manager Asset Management TextMeshPro General Rendering	Minimize #M Unity 2019.2.9f1 Person Zoom III III Bring All to Front ** Layouts * Asset Store #9 Package Manager #9 Asset Management * TextMeshPro * General * Rendering *

Creating Spheres

1. Outside of Unity, export your 360 images as 2D images with a 2:1 ratio in JPEG or PNG format. Drag the images into the Textures folder in Unity. Click on each image, and in the Inspector change the Texture Shape to cube in the drop down. Click Apply at the bottom of the Inspector for all changes to be saved.

Inspector	≟ •≡
36 Import Setti	ngs 🛛 🗐 🖬 🄅
	Open
Texture Type	2D
Texture Shape	✓ Cube
Manaina	Auto +
Mapping Convolution Type	None +
Fixup Edge Seams	
sRGB (Color Texture)	
Alpha Source	Input Texture Alpha 🕴
Alpha Is Transparency	
▶ Advanced	
Wrap Mode	Repeat \$
Filter Mode	Bilinear 🗘
Aniso Level	1
Default	+ 5
Max Size	2048 +
Resize Algorithm	Mitchell +
Format	Automatic +
	High Quality +
Compression	(
Use Crunch Compres	2
	Revert Apply
	(Refere) (Apply)

2. Enter the materials folder, right click in the folder and select Create > Material, to create a material. Create as many materials as you have 360 images. For each material created, click on the material and in the inspector next to Shader, click on the box and select Skybox > Cubemap.

		Create Reveal in Finder Open Delete Rename Copy Path C#CC	Audio Mitel Material Lens Flare Render Texture Lightmap Parameters Custom Render Texture Sprite Atlas Sprites
		Open Scene Additive	Animator Controller
Project Console		Import New Asset Import Package	Animator Override Controller
▼ ☆ Favorites	Assets > Materials	Export Package Find References In Scene Select Dependencies	Timeline Signal
Q All Prefabs ▼ a Assets	36 37 38 42 43 45 47	Refresh %R Reimport	Physic Material Physics Material 2D
Materials		Reimport All	GUI Skin
Scripts		Extract From Prefab	Custom Font
 Textures Packages 		Run API Updater	Legacy
		Update UIElements Schema	UIElements Editor Window Brush



3. Assign a 360 image to the material by clicking on the box next to Cubemap (HDR) and select the 360 textures. Make sure to name each material to keep track of the image that it contains.



4. Create a sphere in the Scene by right clicking in the empty space of the hierarchy and selecting 3D object > sphere. Create as many spheres as there are materials. In the Inspector, set the scale for all the spheres at 10,10,10. Set the first sphere's position to 0,0,0 Space the following spheres at position 0,0,20, then 0,0,40 etc. The scale and spacing of the spheres does not really matter, it is just important to be consistent!



5. For each sphere, in the Inspector remove the Sphere Collider component by right clicking on Sphere Collider and selecting Remove Component.

36 Static Tag Untagged t Layer Default t Transform 7 * * Position X Y Z Rotation X Y Z Scale X Y Z Mesh Sphere V Sphere V Sphere V State I 1 V State I State V State I State
Transform I I I Position X O Y O Z O Rotation X O Y O Z O Scale X 10 Y O Z O Scale X 10 Y I I O Vest Sphere (Mesh Filter) I I I I Mesh With Sphere O I I I I Visit Materials Size 1 I I I I I Element 0 36 O I I I I I I
Transform I I I Position X O Y O Z O Rotation X O Y O Z O Scale X 10 Y O Z O Scale X 10 Y I I O Vest Sphere (Mesh Filter) I I I I Mesh With Sphere O I I I I Visit Materials Size 1 I I I I I Element 0 36 O I I I I I I
Position X 0 Y 0 Z 0 Rotation X 0 Y 0 Z 0 Scale X 10 Y 0 Z 0 Scale X 10 Y 10 Z 10 V Sphere (Mesh Filter) I I I I Mesh III Sphere 0 I I V Mesh Renderer I I I I V Materials Size 1 I I I Element 0 I I I I I I
Rotation X 0 Y 0 Z 0 Scale X 10 Y 10 Z 10 V Sphere (Mesh Filter) I I I Mesh Image: Sphere Image: Sphere </td
Scale X 10 Y 10 Z 10 V Sphere (Mesh Filter) I I I Mesh Sphere I I V Materials Size I Element 0 36 O
Mesh Mesh Mash Renderer Materials Size 1 Element 0 36 0
Mesh Mesh Mesh Renderer Materials Size 1 Element 0 36 0
▼ Or Mesh Renderer □ ↓ ↓ ▼ Materials Size Element 0 ● 36
▼Materials Size 1 Element 0 ● 36 ○
Size 1 Element 0 36 0
Element 0
* Lighting
Cast Shadows On +
Contribute Global II
VProbes Light Probes Blend Probes +
Reflection Probes Blend Probes +
Anchor Override None (Transform)
▼ Additional Settings
Motion Vectors Per Object Motion +
Dynamic Occlusion
m
Reset
Is Trigger Remove Component
Material Move Up
Center Move Down
x 0 Copy Component
Radius Paste Component As New
Paste Component Values
30
Find References In Scene
Add Component
Add Component

6. Assign a 360 image to a sphere by clicking on the sphere in the Hierarchy, then in the sphere's Inspector, clicking on the circle to the right of Element 0 under Mesh Render, and selecting the correct image. Alternatively, you can drag the correct image from the materials folder onto the bar next to Element 0 in the sphere's Inspector. Make sure to name your spheres correctly. In case you change the background of the world to a 360 image, you can change it back to grey by choosing in the top bar Window > Rendering > Light Settings then assigning None to the Skybox Material by clicking on the small circle to the right.

-		-
Inspector		<u> </u>
36		🗌 Static 💌
Tag Untage	jed 🕴 Layer Def	ault ‡
▼ 🙏 🛛 Transfo	rm	🛛 🗐 🐺 🐥
Position X	0 Y 0	Z 0
Rotation X	0 Y 0	Z 0
Scale X	10 Y 10	Z 10
Mesh Sphere (Mesh Filter)	<u>∎</u> ≓ ≎ , ⊙
▼ 🛃 🗹 Mesh Re ▼ Materials		💽 🕸 🌣,
Size	1	
Element 0	36	0
V Lighting	Select Material	
Cast Sl Q]
Receiv Ass	ets Scene	<u></u> 959
Contri		A
Receiv		
▼ Probes		
Light P	See.	
Reflect	None 36	
Ancho		

7. To add interactive content to the spheres, a Canvas is necessary. Add this by right clicking on the sphere in the hierarchy, selecting UI > Canvas. Set the Canvas position to 0,0,0, the height and width to 10,10, and the scale to 0.1,0.1,0.1. Same as with the scale of the spheres, these are values that I have chosen. It does not matter what you chose, but make sure to be consistent. For each Canvas, change the Render Mode of the Canvas to World Space in the Inspector. Create a Canvas for every sphere that you will be adding content to.



8. The tour will start wherever the camera is (in this case 0,0,0) so make sure that this is where the first sphere is located.

Creating Sprites

- 1. Sprites are images that can be used to customize buttons and panels. To create a sprite, drag a 2D image in JPEG or PNG format from your computer into the Sprites folder in Assets.
- 2. Select the image and in the Inspector change the Texture Type to Sprite (2D and UI) then click apply at the bottom.

Inspector	<u> -</u> =
animals Import	Default Normal map Editor GUI and Legacy
Texture Type	✓ Sprite (2D and UI)
Texture Shape	Cursor
	Cookie
Sprite Mode	Lightmap
Pixels Per Unit	Single Channel
Mesh Type	Tight +
Extrude Edges	
Pivot	Center +
Generate Physics S	_
	Sprite Editor
► Advanced	
▶ Advanced Wrap Mode	Clamp +
	Clamp +) Bilinear +
Wrap Mode	
Wrap Mode Filter Mode Aniso Level	Bilinear +
Wrap Mode Filter Mode	Bilinear +
Wrap Mode Filter Mode Aniso Level	Bilinear +
Wrap Mode Filter Mode Aniso Level Default	Bilinear +
Wrap Mode Filter Mode Aniso Level Default Max Size	Bilinear + 1 1 2048 +
Wrap Mode Filter Mode Aniso Level Default Max Size Resize Algorithm	Bilinear + 1 2048 + Mitchell +
Wrap Mode Filter Mode Aniso Level Default Max Size Resize Algorithm Format	Bilinear ÷ 1 2048 ÷ Mitchell ÷ Automatic ÷ High Quality ÷
Wrap Mode Filter Mode Aniso Level Default Max Size Resize Algorithm Format Compression	Bilinear ÷ 1 2048 ÷ Mitchell ÷ Automatic ÷ High Quality ÷

Creating forward and back buttons in the spheres

1. In the hierarchy, right click on the canvas in the sphere that you would like to add buttons to. Select UI > Button. Adjust the x,y,z, height + width, scale, and rotation of the button to place the button in the correct position. This can also be down using the buttons in the top left of the Unity screen.



2. To change the image of the button, assign a sprite to the Source Image in the Inspector. Delete the text if undesired by right clicking on it in the Hierarchy and choosing Delete. You can also change the colour/opacity of the button in the Inspector next to Color.

Inspector			â •
36	> 37		🗌 Static 🔻
Tag Ur	ntagged	🕈 Layer 💷	+
▼ ∂ ි Rect	Transform	1	[🔄 다 🐥
center	Pos X	Pos Y	Pos Z
<u>ه</u>	3	-0.75	1
middle	Width	Height	
	70	70	C R
Anchors			
Pivot	X 0.5	Y 0.5]
Rotation	x 0	Y 75	Z 0
Scale	X 0.005	Y 0.005	Z 0.5
▶⊚ Can	as Render	er	🔯 🕸 🐥
🔻 🍢 🗹 Imag	ge (Script)		🔯 🕸 🔅
Source Ima	ge	🖸 forward	0
Color			J I
Material		None (Mate	
Raycast Tai	rget	✓	
Image Type	:	Simple	\$
Use Spri	te Mesh		
Preserve	Aspect		
		Set Nati	ve Size

- 3. Select the button and in the Inspector, choose Add Component, and add the "SphereChanger" script.
- 4. Under On Click () box in the Hierarchy, click the plus in the bottom right corner. Three boxes will pop up. Click on the small circle in the bottom left box and click the Scene tab. Chose the desired button that you would like to perform the function. Then in the top right drop down, click No Function > SphereChanger > ChangeSphere (Transform). In the bottom right box, chose the sphere that you would like the scene to move to by clicking on the small circle to the right and choosing the correct sphere from the Scene tab. In this case, the button is called "36 > 37" and the correct sphere is called "37".

On Click ()		On Click ()	
List is Empty	+ -	Runtime On‡ No Fun	ction +
e 36 36 37	■ 36 > 3 ○ ↓ 37 (Runtime On + GameO □ huck ¢ ○ □	Visualize Changer.ChangeSphere ‡ Transform) © bbject.SetActive ‡	
Select Transfor Assets Scene 36MCpanel	orm		Visualize Changer.ChangeSphere ‡
X 37 37 37 > 36	Ō	■ 36 > 3 ○ ↓ 37 (Runtime On‡ GameO	Transform) ©

Creating pop-up information blurbs

- 1. Create a button the same way as above (Step 1 of Creating forward and back buttons in the spheres)
- 2. Right click on the button, select UI > Panel.
- 3. Change the colour, image, scale, location and size of the Panel as desired in the Inspector.

📄 🗌 pa	rasitic plan	t panel	🗌 Static 🔻
Tag Ur	ntagged	🕈 Layer 💷	\$
▼ S Rect	Transform	n	🛛 🔯 🔅
stretch	Left	Тор	Pos Z
5	-32.5	-29.3	1
stretch	Right	Bottom	
2	-27.5	-30.7	R
Anchors			
Pivot	X 0.5	Y 0.5]
Rotation	X 14	Y -67	Z 0
Scale	X 0.0742	Y 0.0556	Z 0.0500
▶⊚ Canv	vas Render	er	🛛 🗐 🐺 🐥
🔻 🍢 🗹 Imag	ge (Script)		💽 🗐 🄅
Source Ima	ge	parasitio	plant 💿
Color			J.
Material		None (Mate	erial) O
Raycast Tai	rget		
Image Type	2	Simple	;
Use Spri	te Mesh		
Preserve	Aspect		
		Set Nati	ve Size

4. If the Panel is a child of the button (meaning that it is attached to the button as a dropdown option in the hierarchy), changing the scale and rotation of the button will affect the size and rotation of the panel. It is easiest to adjust the panel when it is a child of the button. I recommend putting the button in its correct location first, adjusting it, then adding the panel. In the image below, the Main Camera is a child of the Tripod, for an example.

V	7	ζ	1] 1	Τı	rip	00	d				
				ζ	7	I	Иai	in	C	ar	n	era
		-			1	1	1					.1

- 5. Add a button to the panel that will be used to close the panel. Make sure that it is a child of the panel.
- 6. To enable a button to open/close a panel, click on the button's inspector, and then the + sign in the On Click () area, as before. As before with the forward and back button, assign the button you would like to perform the function. In the drop-down menu, select GameObject > SetActive (bool). Check the box if you want the button to open something, and leave it unselected if you want the button to close something. This can be used to open or close multiple panels at once. In the image below, if the button is clicked, the bottom 3 objects will close and the top object will open.

On Click ()			
Runtime On‡	GameObject.SetActive		;
Runtime On‡	GameObject.SetActive	_	\$
Runtime On‡	GameObject.SetActive	_	÷
Runtime On‡	GameObject.SetActive		;
		+	-

7. Once the panel has been completed, in the hierarchy drag the panel off of the button so that it is no longer a child of the open button (but it is still a child of the canvas). In the Inspector for the panel, unclick the top left button next to the name to hide the panel until it is opened. Make sure that in the hierarchy, the panel is lower than the button so that the button does not obscure the panel. In the image below, the buttons are in black writing as they are visible, and the grey writing is the panels as they are invisible.

P () 30	
V 🖓 42	
🔻 🕜 Canvas	
42 > 43	
42 > 38	
🗍 Instructionvid1 (veg)	
🗇 Logging	
TA 🕡	
问 humanhist	
0 42MC	A Inspector
Iogging panel	O Inspector 🔒 🖛
Iogging panel 2	
Image:	🔄 🗌 logging panel 🗌 Static 🔻
AT panel 42	Tag Untagged + Layer Default +
42MCpanel	Tag Untagged + Layer Delautt +
N C 47	

8. If you would like to change the position of a panel later, I recommend making it a child of the button again, then moving it by repositioning the button.

Creating multiple-choice pop ups

- 1. Create a button the same way as above.
- 2. Create a panel that can be opened and closed with the button the same way as above.
- 3. Add text to the panel by right clicking on the panel in the Hierarchy, selecting UI > Text. Scale and move the text to the top of the panel as you would with any other object. Make sure the text is a child of the panel. This text will serve as the question. The text can be changed in the text box in the inspector.



4. Create as many buttons as there are multiple choice options, add them to the panel, and label each button as a different option. Don't forget a close button. In this example, the options are north, east, south, west. Wrong and right are 2 more panels that will display the answer when each button is clicked.

▼
× •
north
Plotu
🕨 🕜 east
🕨 🕜 south
West
🕨 🕜 wrong
🕨 🕜 right
🕨 🕖 close

- 5. For each multiple-choice option/button, create another panel the same way as above. These panels will be smaller than the original panel, and a child of the original panel. The panel can be used to display whether the answer is correct or incorrect with text. Enable the buttons to open and close the answer panels in the On Click () area as before.
- 6. Make sure to place buttons and panels in the correct order of the hierarchy so that nothing is obscured. This includes the original question panel, as well as the panels that display the right or wrong answer.
- 7. This whole part can be very confusing. Make sure that your buttons are connected to the right panels, and that everything has close buttons (the question, right, and wrong panel).

Creating hyperlinks

- 1. Create a button the same way as above.
- 2. Drag the hyperlink script onto the button in the hierarchy, or use the Add Component method. *Note, there are two different scripts for whether the project will be run on the web or in a browser. For a desktop build, use the part of the script that has

Application.OpenURL and delete the other line of code. For a web build, use the line that has Application.ExternalEval, and delete the other line of code. Replace the URL with your link. Make sure only to replace the underlined area (this is the URL). Ensure that the name of the script is the same as the name next to public class in the script. For URL included in the tour will need a unique script.

3. In the inspector of the button, press the plus sign near the On Click () box. Choose the button as the bottom left option, then in the top right as the function, choose the hyperlink script name > OpenWebsite ().

	On Click ()		
bool enabled	Runtime Ont growingseason.OpenWe No Function	bsite ‡	On Click ()
string name bool runInEditMode string tag bool useGUILayout BroadcastMessage CancelInvoke (strin	(string) Button	* * * *	Runtime On‡ growingseason.OpenWebsite ‡
CancelInvoke () ✓ OpenWebsite ()			

Embedding videos

- 1. Drag all your videos into the Video folder in Assets.
- 2. Create a button the same way as above.
- 3. Create a Panel that you can open with the button, the same way as above.
- 4. In the Texture folder in Assets, right click, select Create > Render Texture. In the Inspector, set the size of the render texture to the same dimensions as the video to maintain the resolution.

		Create Reveal in Finder Open Delete Rename Copy Path	C #C	Material Lens Flare Render Texture Lightmap Parameters Custom Render Texture Sprite Atlas Sprites	Kent a kess the ter you nor, i new
		Open Scene Additive		Animator Controller	
Project E Console	E. Straine	Import New Asset Import Package Export Package	•	Animation Animator Override Controller Avatar Mask	
r 😭 Favorites Q All Materials Q All Models	Assets > Textures	Find References In Scene Select Dependencies		Timeline Signal	-
Q All Prefabs	36 37 38 42	Refresh Reimport	ЖR	Physic Material Physics Material 2D	
🔤 Materials 🕋 Scenes		Reimport All		GUI Skin	
Scripts Sprites		Extract From Prefab		Custom Font	
Textures Packages		Run API Updater		Legacy	•
Fackages			_	LIElements Editor Window	

5. Right click on the panel in the Hierarchy, select UI > Raw Image. In the inspector, set the height and width of the Raw Image to the same dimensions of the video to maintain resolution. Under Raw Image (Script), set the Texture of the Raw Image to the render texture created above. The raw image should be a child of the panel.

Inspector	r		∂ •≡
Ra	awlmage		🗌 🗌 Static 🔻
Tag U	ntagged	🕴 Layer 🕻	Default 🕴
▼ S Rect	t Transfor	m	💽 🕸 🌣,
center	Pos X	Pos Y	Pos Z
e 👝	0	0	0
niddle	Width	Height	_
	100	100	
Anchors			
Pivot	X 0.5	Y 0.5	
Rotation	x 0	Y 0	Z 0
Scale		Y 1	
Scale	X 1	Y 1	Z 1
▶⊚ Can	vas Rende	rer	💽 🕸 🌣
🔻 🏪 🗹 Raw	Image (So	ript)	🔯 🕸 🏟
Texture		None (Text	ure) O
Color			J.
Material		None (Mate	rial) O
Raycast Ta	rget		
UV Rect			
X 0		Y 0	
W 1		H 1	
	Add C	omponent	
	Auu Co	mponent	

6. Select the panel that is housing the raw image. In the Inspector, click Add Component and search for Video Player. In the Inspector of the Panel, assign the desired video to Video Clip under the Video Player tab, and assign the previously created render texture to Target Texture under the Video Player tab. Make sure that Play On Awake is checked (this starts the video as soon as you click the button and the panel is opened).

🔻 🖻 🗹 Video Player	🔯 🗟 🔅
Source	Video Clip 🗘
Video Clip	None (Video Clip) 🛛 💿
Play On Awake	
Wait For First Frame	
Loop	
Skip On Drop	
Playback Speed	-0
Render Mode	Render Texture +
Target Texture	None (Render Texture 💿
Aspect Ratio	Fit Horizontally 🗘
Audio Output Mode	Direct +
Add Co	omponent

- 7. Add a close button at the bottom of the panel that closes the panel (and all of its children).
- 8. *Note: If the videos are large files, adding videos straight into the tour makes the build a very large file, which can make it hard to find websites that will support it. In the VR tour build, the videos were instead uploaded to Youtube and linked as a URL.

Building (Exporting) the project

1. In the top bar, select File > Build Settings.

Unity	File	Edit	Assets	Game	Object	Com
erarchy	Ne	se All w Scer en Sce		₩₩ N BN BO	l Pivot	Globa ame 1
e *	Sav Sav	/e /e As		೫S 企೫S	ireframe	• 2D
36 37 38 42	Op	w Proje en Proj /e Proj	ject		the second	
► 0 43 ► 45		ld Sett Id And		∂ <mark>೫</mark> Β ೫ Β		
▶ () 47 ▶ () 49 ▶ () 51	Clo	se		жW	-	
				-	1000	

2. Select the platform that you would like to build the file for. The options are in the bottom left area. Choose the one you want and then click Switch Platform.

	Build Settings	
Scenes In Build		
Scenes/Try 2		0 Add Open Scenes
Platform		
PC, Mac & Linux Standalone	PC, Mac & Linux Sta	Indalone
😈 WebGL 🚭	Target Platform Server Build	Mac OS X 🔹
€t∨ tvOS	Development Build Autoconnect Profiler	
₽_54 PS4	Script Debugging Scripts Only Build	
iOS	Scripts only band	
Xbox One		
Android	Compression Method	Default \$
Facebook		Learn about Unity Cloud Build
Player Settings	Swite	ch Platform Build And Run

For some you will need to download the module. Do this by going to the Unity Hub, clicking Installs on the left menu, click the three dots in the top right of your Unity install, select Add Modules, then check the box next to the support you want and click Done.



Projects	Installs	Add Modules
🕏 Learn	€ :	
🚓 Community		Reveal in Finder
Installs	2019.2.9f1	Uninstall
	ios 😈	100

Add Modules			×
Add modules to Unity 2019.2.9f1 : total space	e available 12.7 GB - t	otal space required 0 B	
Visual Studio for Mac	1.3 GB	3.8 GB	
Platforms			
> Android Build Support	677.7 MB	2.0 GB	
iOS Build Support	Installed	3.5 GB	
tvOS Build Support	492.2 MB	1.4 GB	
Linux Build Support	145.9 MB	457.6 MB	
Mac Build Support (IL2CPP)	133.1 MB	462.0 MB	
VebGL Build Support	Installed	974.6 MB	
Windows Build Support (Mono)	111 0 MR	363.2 MB	
CANCEL			DONE

- 3. At the top, click Add Open Scenes to add your project to the build
- 4. Click Build and save the file to your computer.

Uploading the tour onto Wordpress via simmer.io or itch.io

- 1. Create an account on simmer.io or itch.io (we used simmer.io for this upload).
- 2. For simmer:
 - a. On the homepage, click the upload icon in the top right.
 - b. Drag your WebGL build folder directly into the purple box on the upload screen, wait for file to upload, fill out the boxes and click save game.
 - c. Fill out all other boxes in the editor page, and save at the bottom.
 - d. Embed the game into wordpress by copying the code that starts with <iframe and ends with iframe> available in the Embed Your Game window or by copying the code at the bottom of the game in the <> icon.
 - e. Paste the code in the text part of an edit Wordpress page.
- 3. For itch:
 - a. On the homepage, click the down arrow in the top right. Choose Upload a New Project under CREATE from the dropdown menu. Give your project a title, URL, Classification, etc. Under Kind of Project, choose HTML.
 - b. On your computer, export the WebGL build as a zip file. Under Uploads, upload the zip and click This file will be played in the browser.
 - c. For Embed Options, choose Embed in page, and Manually set size. Set the height and width of the project as desired.
 - d. Under Frame options, check the Fullscreen button.
 - e. Choose the rest of the settings as desired.
 - f. Click Save and view page.
 - g. To embed the game, click Edit project at the top of the game window. Choose distribute along the top bar next to edit project in the next page. Choose Embed game from the left menu options. Copy and paste the code that starts with <iframe and ends with iframe> into the Wordpress text area.
- 4. For both itch and simmer, be aware of file size restrictions. The tour we are uploading is \sim 130MB.

Helpful resources used to learn all of the above:

Information about how to set up the basics of the project. *Note that none of them were followed exactly for building the tour, and rather for learning how to use Unity and taking different pieces of information:

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2q9wc9Y35wg https://medium.com/game-development-stuff/how-to-make-a-360%C2%BA-image-viewer-withunity3d-b1aa9f99cabb https://tutorialsforvr.com/how-do-i-build-vr-app/ https://tutorialsforvr.com/creating-virtual-tour-app-in-vr-using-unity/

Code for rotating photospheres: http://www.andrewnoske.com/wiki/Unity - Panorama Viewer

Creating hyperlinks: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=XBKLZAqPA1g

Adding videos straight into the tour: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=OdVGyV3rTGs

Uploading to Simmer and embedding in Wordpress: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3Jpqvt6FGQM

Uploading to itch: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=H2HCXVAbe0w&t=147s

If anything is unclear or you want to know how to do something else, just google it. There is so much information available on the internet relating to Unity.